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Kahler, Pam

From: Kahler, Pam

Sent:
To:

Friday, March 30, 2001 5:15 PM
Miller, Mark ’

Subject: RE: Business Subsidies

Yes, | spoke with John about a meeting. | think it would be very helptul, and I also think that | will have to try to

bring, at least, Marc Shovers along. He drafts in the areas of both tax incremental financing and municipalities
(he drafted Smart Growth).

Pam

----- Original Message-----

From: Miller, Mark

Sent: Friday, March 30, 2001 5:07 PM
To: Kahler, Pam

Cc: Stolzenberg, John; Sen.Hansen
Subject: RE: Business Subsidies

Pam,

What you suggest parallels the development of the Minnesota law. Minnesota began with the
reporting requirements. The public hearing and some of the other process requirements are a
recent modification. | want to include some consequences when a recipient fails to accomplish
certain goals. Such things as job goals, wage goals, moving out of state, etc. | like the idea of
public hearings, especially for Creating TIF districts. A public inpuf requirement can be limited to
only those public investments where it makes reasonable sense. Perhaps it can be included as
part of Smart Growth...if TIF districts are identified as part of a Smart Growth process, the public

input required for the Smart Growth would be sufficient for the TIF district that emerges from that '
planning process. -

John Stozenberg plans to meet with me next week, or possibly the week of the 9th, but wants to

try to arrange a time when you are available so that we can discuss the various decision items

. and get a chance to clarify the instructions. | told him that | am more interested in simplicity than

in being comprehensive, but that a conversation among his team, you, and me will be useful for

all of us. When a date is selected, I'll see if someone from Senator Hansen's office is available to
join us. '

Mark

p.s. | think my computer is finally fixed. | was without a computer for most of the last two days.
MM ' :

From: Kahler, Pam

Sent: Thursday, March 29, 2001 12:21 PM
To: Miller, Mark

Subject: RE: Business Subsidies

Thank you for your response. The part of the Minnesota law that | found most problematic
was the requirement to hold public hearings before any "business subsidy" was granted,
one to establish criteria for awarding the subsidy and then another for the actual awarding
of the subsidy. Since many programs in our statutes that would be considered "business
subsidies" already have criteria spelled out in‘the statutes, it seemed to me that each
"business subsidy" program would have to be identified and the criteria changed or
eliminated. That would require identifying every program (probably impossible) and
making a judgment call on whether a program actually was a "business subsidy”. It would

03/30/2001
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also require all drafters of future programs that might be considered business subsidies to
be cognizant of the public hearing requirements, to make a judgment call on whether the
program actually was a business subsidy, and to leave out any criteria for awarding the
subsidy. From your response, it sounds like you are more interested in the reporting
requirement, which could be imposed on every agency. Is that correct? | could draft a
preliminary draft that imposes the reporting requirement and include a drafter's note that
lists the other parts of the Minnesota law that could be included. You could then let me
know if you want to expand the draft by including one or more of the other requirements
under Minnesota law. Does that sound okay? :

Pam

----- Original Message-----

From: Miller, Mark

Sent: Wednesday, March 28, 2001 7:59 AM
To: Kahler, Pam

Cc: Stolzenberg, John

Subject: RE: Business Subsidies

Pam, o
| apologize for not responding promptly, but my computer "dumped" a bunch
of emails. Fortunately the network administrator was able to restore the lost

emails, but | had to go through all of them to find the ones that | needed a
response.

My goal is to require reporting on public subsidies/economic development
grants to one agency which-would then compile a summary report available
to the public and the legislature. The report would include business
subsidles administered by the reporting agency as well as all the other
reporting agencies and jurisdictions. The hope is to consolidate basic
information regarding the scope and effectiveness of economic -
development/subsidy programs in the state. | recognize that defining a
corporate subsidy or economic development grant is tricky. Public
investment in education could be considered an economic development
investment. | don't know how best to draw the line defining the universe of

included activities, but it should include an¥ kind of direct grant, use of public W M’)Q

Q M borrowing authority for low interest loans, TIE districts, labor training grants,

2
’

03/30/2001

or any pubiic investment that benefits a particul si er vs. \{/’
all businesses or a class of businesses. '

| would not include technical assistant to local jurisdictions for planning or e WDQ,M,Q..@
state promotion of state products, or tax code provisions. ’

It seems to make sense for DOA or Commerce to be the agency responsible
for collecting, summarizing, and reporting on the scope and effectiveness
of public economic development investments. I'm inclined toward DOA.

I hope this provides sufficient guidance. If in doubt, choose the side of
simplicity. | don't see this legislation, should it become law, as anything
more than a starting point to begin assessing the effectiveness of these

public investments. Minnesota's law has been effective in accomplishing this
result. : '

John Stolzenberg is the Leg Council staff doing the business subsidy
research. :

----- Original Message-----
From: Kahler, Pam
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Sent: Monday, March 19, 2001 4:21 PM
To: Miller, Mark ‘
Subject: RE: Business Subsidies

Representative Miller:

| have a few comments and questions about the drafting request.
The Minnesota law appears to regulate the granting of business
subsidies by local governments and every state agency. "Business
subsidy" is defined very broadly to include not only grants but also tax
or fee deferrals or reductions, preferential use of government
facilities, and many other types of grants or contributions. The -
definition is so broad that I'm not sure every instance in current law of
a "business subsidy" could be found. For example, | came upon s.
646.51 (7) (b) in another context and wondered if that would come
under the definition of "business subsidy." It seems to if the amount
might exceed $25,000 (under the Minnesota law). The law requires
all of these local governments and state agencies to submit annual
reports to the Minnesota department of trade and economic
development. | don't know if that is the equivalent of our department
of commerce or agriculture, trade and consumer protection. In any
case, it seems quite unprecedented to require all agencies to report to
another agency with respect to something that that agency must
report on also. It seems to make more sense for all agencies to
report to DOA, but I'm sure that DOA also grants "business subsidies"
that it would be required to report on - to itself.

Did you have a more limited scope in mind? Were you interested

in particular "business subsidies?" Perhaps "subsidies” of a particular ‘

kind or ones granted by a particular agency?
Who is researching business subsidies under our statutes at the
legislative council? Perhaps it would be helpful for me to speak to

- that person.

Pam

————— Original Message-----

From: Miller, Mark

Sent: Friday, March 02, 2001 9:09 AM
To: Kahler, Pam

Subject: Business Subsidies

I am working with Sen. Hansen on this legislation
regarding business subsidies. Please feel free to share

any information regarding this request with his office.
Mark

----- Original Message-----

From: Miller, Mark

Sent: Wednesday, February 21, 2001 10:00 AM
To: Kahler, Pam :

Subject: Business Subsidies

| want to develop legislation that is similar to Minnesota
law which requires a planning and accountability
mechanism as part of the administration of public

subsidies to business. (MN statutes 116}.993-995, see
attached).

Please commence drafting a bill that will accomplish the
same purpose as the Minnesota legislation. | realize

that the process will generate many questions that will
require resolution as we proceed. '

Page 3 of 4
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| have requested supplementary research from
Legislative Council to identify the scope of business
subsidies and accountability mechanisms currently in
place. _ :

Thank you for your assistance.

Mark Miller
48th Assembly District

Capitol Room 112 North
- P.O. 8953, Madison, WI 53708

608-266-5342, 608-282-3648 Fax
Rep.Miller@legis.state.wi.us

Page 4 of 4
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Kahler, Pam

From: Stolzenberg, John

Sent: Thursday, April 05, 2001 4:.57 PM

To: Matthias, Mary; Zavos, Nicholas; Kahler, Pam
Subject: RE: MN business subsidy law :

Let's project this web site at Monday’s meeting with Rep. Miler when we're discussing the Minnesota law....

John

----- Original Message-----

From: Matthias, Mary

Sent: Thursday, April 05, 2001 2:11 PM

To: Stolzenberg, John; Zavos, Nicholas; Kahler, Pam
Subject: MN business subsidy law

Here is a useful website- | talked to the DTED analyst who works on the program (Ed Hotter--651-296-0580) and got a
bit of info:

In 2000 there were a total of around 5 -10 "subsidies" provided at the state level and 52 subsidies provided by local units
-of government that fell within the criteria of the business subsidy law.

the legislator who sponsored the legislation was Sen. John Hottinger.
DTED did not get any new appropriation to carry out its new tasks under the law.

| printred copies of the Fact Sheet, FAQ's and 2001 Business Assistance Form and will bring them to the meeting on
Monday.

Mary Matthias

Senior Staff Attorney :

Wisconsin Legislative Council Staff

ph.: (608)266-0932; fax: (608)266-3830 mary.matthias @legis.state.wi.us

http://www.dted.state.mn.us/02x00f.asp
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Minnesota Statutes 2000, Table of Chapters

Table of contents for Chapter 116J

116J.993 Definitions.

Subdivision 1. Scope. For the burposes of sections
116J.993 to 116J.995, the terms defined in this section have the
meanings given them.

Subd. 2. Benefit date. "Benefit date” means the date
that the recipient receives the business subsidy. If the
business subsidy involves the purchase, lease, or donation of
physical equipment, then the benefit date begins when the
recipient puts the equipment into service. If the business
subsidy is for improvements to property, then the benefit date
refers to the earliest date of either:

{1) when the improvements are finished for the entire
project; or

- {2) when a business occupies the property. If a business
occupies the property and the subsidy grantor expects that other
businesses will alsc occupy the same property, the grantor may

assign a separate benefit date for each business when it first
occupies the property. -
Subd. 3. Business subsidy. -"Business subsidy" or 0»«u2

"subsidy"” means a state or local government agency grant,
contribution ¢of personal property, real property,

infrastructure, the principal amount of a loan at rates below

those commercially available to the recipient, any reduction or

deferral of any tax or any fee, any guarantee of any payment

under any loan, lease, or other obligation, or any preferential

use of government facilities given to a business.

//'—’\/‘\/"\_\

The following forms of financial assistance are not a

business subsidy:

o b

(,\_/,«'*\.,W~ e il

(2) assistance that is ggggfally'avallable to all ~
businesses or to a general class of similar businesses, such as v}’~a~: N
a line of business, size, location, or similar general criteria; <&— @&
(60 Yunare Yoo U
(3) public improvements to buildings or lands owned by the Q
state or local government that serve a public purpose and do‘,-/
principally benefit a single business or defined group of

businesses at the time the improvements are made;
“*

»
& k - b
}%: (4) redevelopment property polluted by contaminants as Aﬂﬂélﬁ 67?4Lm417
defined in section 116J.552, subdivision 3;

(5) assistance provided for the sole purpose of renovating
old or decaying building stock or bringing it up to code and
assistance provided for designated historic preservation
districts, provided that the assistance is equal to or less than
w 50 percent of the total cost;

!

http ://www.revisbr.leg.state.mn.us/ stats/116J/993.html 02/19/2001
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~

(6) assistance to provide job readiness and training -y
services if the sole purpose of the assistance is to provide €L4ra“” :
those services; ' :

(7) assistance for housing;

(8) assistance for pollution control or abatement,
including assistance for a tax increment financing hazardous
substance subdistrict as defined under section 469.174,
subdivision 23;

(9) assistance for energy conservation;

(10) tax reductions resulting from conformity with federal
tax law;

"(11) workers' compensation and unemployment compensation;
(12) benefits derived from regulation;

(13) indirect benefits derived from assistance to

educational imstitwtions; v?? ~
/ __________ I :,;;»—’-&r-\\ ‘ ’/
(14) funds from bonds allocated under\gQQQE§£~ﬁ74AL)bonds %Gfﬂ e
issued to refund outstanding bonds, and bonds issued for the ol

benefit of an organization described in section 501(c)(3) of the |z _ 4,20

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended through December 31, ]
1999; , /

J{} WHEFA bandd-

Qe

(15) assistance for a collaboration between a Minnesota
higher education institution and a business;

{16) assistance for a tax increment financing soils 2
condition district as™defined under section 469.174, subdivision — '
19;

(17) redevelopment when the recipient’'s investment in the
purchase of the site and in site preparation is 70 percent or
more of the assessor's current year's estimated market value;

(18) general changes in tax increment financing law and

other general tax law changes of a principally technical nature; _ alwA,NﬁS C

(19) federal assistance until the assistance has been C ..i’.éﬁyd
repaid to, and reinvested by, the state or local government RAVe haly
agency;

(20) funds from dock and wharf bonds issued by a seaway —=i .. 53A ) 2 e,
port authority; - s Mogreracay.

(21} business(iiégg:gnd <San guaranteesdgf $75,000 or less;

and

(22) federal loan funds provided through the United States

Y
Department of Commerce, Economic Development Administration. P
NNHW 2
Subd. 4. Grantor. "Grantor" means any state or local o ¢
government agency @ith the autherity to grant a business subsidg. \9 _ 0/‘/’}7)
% .

http://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/stats/116J/993.html 02/19/2001
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|

! Subd. 5. Local government agency. "Local government

! agency" includes a statutory or home rule charter city, housing

i and redevelopment authority, town, county, port authority,

} economic development authority, community development agency,

nonprofit entity created by a local government agency, or an )
other entity created by or authorized by a local governmentgvith .
authority to provide business subsidie%. /2,<}:\X

Subd. 6. Recipient. "Recipient"” means any for-profit \’; ' ('g :\\)
or nonprofit(Eusihess entit% that receives a business subsidy. . ovv Q;E
Only nonprofit it i at least 100 full-time equivalent L«S‘l' Qggu
positions and with a ratio of highest to lowest paid employee, _(fﬁ\

that exceeds ten to one, determined on the basis of full-time (ng)

equivalent positions, are included in this definition.

Subd. 7. State government agency. "State government
agency” means any state agency(that has the authority to award
business subsidie%.

HIST: 1899 c 243 art 12 s 1; 2000 c 482 s 1

Copyright 2000 by the Office of Revisor of Statutes, State of Minnesota.
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116J.994 Regulating local and state business subsidies.

Subdivision 1. Public purpose. A business subsidy

must meet a public purpose which may include, but may not be
limited to, increasing the tax base. Job retention may only be
used as a public purpose in cases where job loss is specific and
demonstrable.

Subd. 2. Developing a set of criteria. A business
subsidy may not be granted until the grantor has adopted
criteria after a public hearing for awarding business subsidies > €« !
that comply with this section. The criteria may not be adopted C%““ﬁww
on a case-by-case basis. The criteria must set specific minimum _* §
requirements that recipients must mset in order to be eligibl -
to receive business subsidies. The criteria must include a
specific wage floor for the wages to be paid for the jobs
CEEEEQQ. The wage floor may be stated as a specific™dollar
amount or may be stated as a formula that will generate a
specific dollar amount. A grantor may deviate from its criteria
by documenting in writing the reason for the deviation and
attaching a copy of the document to its next annual report to
the department. The commissioner of trade and economic
development may assist local government agencies in developing
criteria. A copy of the criteria must be submitted to the

department of trade and economic development along with the . o e Ly&if ¥%ﬁwﬁkéi)
first annual report following the enactment of this section or d””)t v —

with the first annual report after it has adopted criteria, ‘€6U”ﬁ1 ,

whichever is earlier.

Subd. 3. Subsidy agreement. (a) A recipient must
enter into a subsidy agreement with the grantor of the subsidy
that includes:

(1} a descriptioh of the subsidy, including the amount and B
type of subsidy, and Ezggﬂggwggﬁtriggmij_;he subsidy is tax Mes '

increment financing:

(2) a statement of the public purposes for the subsidy;

. {3) measurable, specific, and tangible goals EEE:EEE:::> <§~\\\
subsidy;

/.‘
.
"

(4) a description of the financial obligation o€:55£:>_,,,/
recipient if the goals are not met;

(5) a statement of why the subsidy is needed: [—

T ' - . ’ N &L-—Q\
(6) a commitment to ggggiggg‘gggfigigggiin\the(juriggiggipj> L‘(_VJK &ﬂg%@h kb
where the subsidy is used for at least'fivgﬂyears after the

benefit date; l

(7) the name and address of the parent corporation of the .
recipient, if any; and

http://www .revisor.leg.state.mn.us/stats/1163/994 html - 02/19/2001
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(8) a list of all financial assistance by all gréntors
the project.

S
1 NP Doweady
e

(b) Business subsidies in the form of grants must be
structured as forgivable loauns. For other types of business
subsidies, the agreement must state the fair market value of the
subsidy to the recipient, including the value of conveying
property at less than a fair market price, or other in-kind
benefits to the recipient.

(¢} If a business subsidy benefits more than one recipient,
the grantor must assign a proportion of the business subsidy to
each recipient that signs a subsidy agreement. The proportion
assessed to each recipient must reflect a reasonable estimate of
the recipient's share of the total benefits of the project.

{d} The state or local government agency and the recipient
must both sign the subsidy agreement and, if the grantor is a
local government agency, the agreement must be approved by the
local elected governing body, exccpt for the St. Paul Port
Authority and a seaway port authority.

(e} Notwithstanding the provision in paragraph {a), clause
(6), a recipient may be authorized to move from the jurisdiction
where the subsidy is used within the five-year period after the
benefit date if, after a public hearing, the grantor approves

the recipient's request to move. For_the purpose of.this %rf2~ —X £ %ﬂﬁhq?wxe
Raragraph, if the grantor is a state government agency other ) =y
than the iron range resources and rehabilitation board, 5} Ciﬁ (é:} 3
"jurisdiction” means a city or township. *5

Subd. 4. Wage and job goals. The subsidy agreement, : fom L—O“Jz
in addition to any other goals, must include: (1) goals for the (:5x~cz,i¢a D _
_number of jobs created, which may includé separate goals for the Hana X w”ﬁfgykuafﬁ>
number of part-time or full-time jobs, or, in cases where job Cornmns T ‘

loss is specific and demonstrable, goals for the number of jobs

retained; and (2) wage goals for the jobs created or retained. Fresthra, W.Lom; >
iML\m After a public hearing, if the creation or retention of jobs is T i?
determined not To be a goal, the wage and job goals may be set :>

at zero.

S

In addition to other specific goal time frames, the wage CTJLxﬁjLQ Qﬁﬁ&wa QJKQHQ;§

and job goals must contain specific goals to be attained within

N SN ~
two years of the benefit date. G\w 2 Bg,p-v;

Subd. 5. Public notice and hearing. (a)} Before
granting a business subsidy that exceeds $500,000 for a state
government grantor and $100,000 for a local government grantor,
the grantor must provide public notice and a hearing on the
subsidy. A public hearing and notice under this subdivision is
not required if a hearing and notice on the subsidy is otherwise
required by law.

(b) Public notice of a proposed business subsidy under this
subdivisiﬁﬁ‘by a state govermment grantor, other than the iron
range resources and rehabilitation board, must be published in
the State Register. Public notice of a proposed business™
§UB81dy under this subdivision by a local government grantor or
the iron range resources and rehabilitation board must be
published in a local newspaper of general circulation. The

http:/fwww.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/stats/116J/994 . html WS AT 02/19/2001
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public notice must identify the location at which information
about the business subsidy, including a summary of the terms of
the subsidy, is available. Published notice should be
sufficiently conspicuous in size and placement to distinguish
the notice from the surrounding text. The grantor must make the
information available in printed paper copies and, if possible,
on the Internet. The government agency must provide at least a
ten-day notice for the public hearing.

{c! The public notice must include the date, time, and
place of the hearing. .

{d) The public hearing by a state government grantor other
than the iron range resources and rehabilitation board must be
held in St. Paul.

(e) If more than one nonstate grantor provides a business
subsidy to the same recipient, the nonstate grantors may
designate one nonstate grantor to hold a single public hearing
regarding the business subsidies provided by all nonstate
grantors. For the purposes of this paragraph, "nonstate
grantor" includes the iron range resources and rehabilitation

board. A
: jt wm&“jr

Subd. 6. Failure to meet goals. The subsidy Vi —

agreement must specify the recipient's obligation if the B ‘d@)4@ :

recipient dpes not fulfill the agreement, At a minimum, the fﬁ

agreement must require a recipient failing to meet subsidy

agreement goals to pay back the assistance plus interest to the Jj"?

grantor or, at the grantor's option, to the -account created uﬂu«*’d“%

under section 116J.551 provided that repayment may be prorated

ect partial fulfillment of.. oalks-..The interest rate must
be set at no less than the licit price deflator)as defined
under section 275.70, subdivision Z7 " TH& ¢ grantor, after a !
public hearing, may extend for up to one year the period for
meeting the wage and job goals under subdivision 4 provided in a
subsidy agreement. A grantor may extend the period for meeting
other goals under subdivision 3, paragraph (a), clause (3), by
documenting in writing the reason for the extension and
attaching a copy of the document to its next annual report to
the department.

A recipient that fails to meet the terms of a subsidy P v o
agreement may not receive a business sub51dy from any grantor D .ouifﬁx ’
for a period of five years from the date of failure or until a . «&ﬁbywr'7
recipient satisfies its repayment oblIigation under this
subdivision, whichever occurs first.

Before a grantor signs a business subsidy agreement, the
grantor must check with the compilation and summary report
required by this section to determine if the recipient is
eligible to receive a business subsidy.

Subd. 7. Reports by recipients to grantors. (a) A
business subsidy grantor must monitor the progress by the
recipient in achieving agreement goals. . ‘. A3
e N S T N
(b) A recipient must provide information regarding goals » &, Dy A

and results for two years after the benefit date or until the <~ 3~ Qlﬁéx
goals are met, whichever is later. If the goals are not meti//

http://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/stats/116J/994 html - 02/19/2001
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~

the recipient must continue to provide information on the /
subsidy until the“subsidy 1Is repaid. The inférmation must be
filed on TOTHE ™8 developed by thecoémmissioner in cooperation with
representatives of local government. Copies of the completed
forms must be sent to the local government agency that provided
the subsidy or to the commissioner if the grantor is a state
agency. If the iron range resources and rehabilitation board is
the grantor, the copies must be sent to the board. The report
must include:

(1) the type, public purpose, and amount of subsidies and
type of district, if the subsidy is tax increment financing;

o Bment

(2) the hourly wage of each job created with separate bands
of wages; T

(3) the sum of the hourly wages and cost of health
insurance provided by the employer with separate bands of wages;

(4) the date the job and wage goals will be reached; \—tk~\-%k 0J4”4£*2f3xh%3‘%3

prprg et
{(5) a statement of goals identified in the subsidy
agreement and an update onAachievement of those goals;

(6) the location of the recipient prior to receiving the
business subsidy;

(7) why the recipient did not complete the project ocutlined
in the subsidy agreement at their previous location, if the
recipient was previously located at another site in Minnesota;

(8} the name and address of the parent corporation of the

recipient, if any; 0§?f(
(9) a list of all financial assistance by all grantors for —2 GVJL%S
the project; and

(10) other information the commissioner may request.

A report must be filed no later than March 1 of each year for
the previous year. The local agency and the iron range

resources and rehabilitation board must forward copies of the
reports received by recipients to the commissioner by April 1.

(c) Financial assistance that is excluded from the
definition of "business subsidy” By 5&&fion 116J.993,
subdivision 3, clauses (4), (5), (B}, and (16), is subject to
the reporting requlgements of this subdivision, except that the
reSB‘t 5f the reciglent must include instead:

(1) the type, public purpose, and amount of the financial
assistance, and type of district if the assistance is tax
increment financing;

(2) progress towards meeting goals stated in the assistance
agreement and the public purpose of the assistance;

(3) if the agreement includes job creation, the hourly wage
of each job created with separate bands of wages;

http://www .revisor.leg.state.mn.us/stats/116J/994 html 02/19/2001
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(4) if the agreement includes job creation, the sum of the
hourly wages and cost of health insurance provided by the
employer with separate bands of wages:

{5} the location of the recipient prior Lo recelving Lhe
assistance; and

(6) other information the grantor requests.

(d) If the recipient does not submit its report, the local
government agency must mail the recipient a warning within one

“week of the required filing date. If, after 14 days of the

postmarked date of the warning, the recipient fails to provide a
report, the recipient must pay to the grantor a penalty of $100
for each subsequent day until the report is filed. The maximum
penalty shall not exceed $1,000,

Subd. 8. Reports by grantors. (a) Local govefnment
agencies of a local government with a population of more than

- 2,500 and state government agencies, regardless of whether or

not they have awarded any business subsidies, must file a report
by April 1 of each year with the commissioner. Local government
agencies of a local government with a population of 2,500 or
less are exempt from filing this report if they have not awarded
a business subsidy in the past five years. The report must
include a list of recipients that did not comﬁIEEE‘EHE"fécipient
report required under subdivision 7 and @ 1ist of recipients

that have not met their job and wage goals within two years and

the steps being taken.to bring them into compliance or to recoup
the subsidy.

If the commissioner has not received the report by April 1
from an entity required to report, the commissioner shall issue
a warning to the government agency. If the commissioner has
still not received the report by June 1 of that same year from
an entity required to report, then that government agency may
not award any business subsidies until the report has been filed.

{b) The commissioner of trade and economic development must
provide information on reporting requirements to state and local
government agencies. .

Subd. 9. Compilation and summary report. The
department of trade and economic development must publish a
compilation and summary of the results of the reports for the

previous calendar year by August 1 of each year. The reports of \

the government agencies to the department and the compilation
and summary report of the department must be made available to |
the public. -

The commissioner must coordinate the production of reports
s0 ‘that useful comparisons across time periods and across
grantors can be made. The commissioner may add other
information to the report as the commissioner deems necessary to
evaluate business subsidies. Among the information in the
summary and compilation report, the commissioner must include:

(1) total amount of subsidies awarded in each development
region of the state; e

http://www .revisor.leg.state.mn.us/stats/116J/994 . html
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(2) distribution of business subsidy amounts by size of the
business subsidy;
>

{3) distribution of business subsidy amounts by time AR
category:

(4) distribution of subsidies by type and by public
purpose; « ~»
Vd

(5) percent of ali&buSLness subsidies that reached their
goals;

(6) percent ofI:;siness subsidies that did not reach their
goals by two years from the benefit date;

(7) total dollar amount of business subsidies that did not
meet their goals after two years from the benefit date;

{8) percent of subsidies that did not meet their goals and
that did not receive repayment; -
-
(9) list of recipients that have failed toc meet the terms
of a subsidy ‘agreement in the past five years and have not
satisfied their repayment obligations;

(10) number of part-time and full-time jobs within separate
bands of wages; and :

{11) benefits paid within separate bands of wages.

Subd. 10. Compilatien. The department of trade and
econonic development must publish a compilation of granting
agencies' criteria policies adopted in the previous calendar
year by Bugust 1 of each year.

HIST: 1999 c 243 art 12 s 2; 2000 c 482 s 2-11

Copyright 2000 by the Office of Revisor of Statutes, State of Minnesota.
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116J.995 Economic grants.

An appropriation rider in an appropriation to the
department of trade and economic development that specifies that
the appropriation be granted to a particular business or class
of businesses must contain a statement of the expected benefits
associated with the grant. At a minimum, the statement mnust
include goals for the number of jobs created, wages paid, and
the tax revenue increases due to the grant. The wage and job
‘goals must contain specific goals to be attained within two
years of the benefit date. The statement must specify the
recipient's obligation if the recipient does not attain the
goals. At a minimum, the statement must require a recipient
failing to meet the job and wage goals to pay back the
assistance plus interest to the department of trade and economic
development provided that repayment may be prorated to reflect
partial fulfillment of goals. The interest rate must be set at
no less than the implicit price deflator as defined under
section 275.70, subdivision 2. The legislature, after a public
hearing, may extend for up to one year the period for meeting
the goals provided in the statement.

HIST: 1999 c 243 art 12 s 3; 2000 c 482 s 12

Copyright 2000 by the Office of Revisor of Statutes, State of Minnesota.
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2000 Minnesota Business Assistance Form

The 2000 Minnesota Business Assistance Form (MBAF) is.used to report each business subsidy and financial

assistance agreements signed from August 1, 1999 through December 31, 1999 per Minn. Stat. §116J.993 to
§116J.995. Please use a separate form to report each agreement.

The following government agencies must submit a 2000 MBAF even if an agreement was not signed during the
period August 1, 1999 through December 31, 1999: 1) any local government/agency that signed a business
subsidy agreement since January 1, 1995, or represents a population of more than 2,500; 2) all state government
agencies. If the local/state government agency does not have any subsidies or assistance to report, please answer

questions 1 through 13 and follow directions.

= JIf alocal or state government agency that is required to report has not done so by April 1, DTED will mail a
warning. If it fails to report by June 1, it may not award any business subsidies until a report has been filed.

L] Quesﬁons? Call (651) 297-2335. Information on where to mail or fax your completed MBAF(s) in on page 4.

Section 1 Information About Grantor

1. Name of grantor (funding entity)

2. Name of person completing this form

3. Street address

4. City 5. ZIP code

6. County 7. Phone number

8. Fax number 9. E-mail address

Name/Title Phone number

10. Please indicate who in your organization should receive the 2001 MBAF if different from the person in Question 2.

Strcct'addrcss » ZIP code

City

11. Classification of grantor (Mark one. If grantor is entity .
created by gov’t agency, please indicate affiliation. For
example, a city EDA would check “City government.”)

Q City government

0 County government

0O Regional government
Q) State government

Q Other (Please specify.)

12. Has your organization held a public hearing on and
adopted criteria for awarding business subsidies in
compliance with Minn. Stat. §116J.994? (Mark one.)

Q Yes (Indicate hearing date -

O No

O We held a public hearing but have not yet adopted
criteria (Indicate date of initial hearing - ________)

and attach criteria)

Q Other (Please attach explanation.)

QO Yes (Complete the remainder of the form.)

13. Has your organization signed any agreements to award a business subsidy or financial assistance from August 1, 1999
through December 31, 1999 that is required to be reported under Minn. Stat. §116J.993 and §116].994? (Mark one.)

QO No (Stop here, go to section 5 on page 4.)

Section 2 Information About Recipient

14. Name of business or organization
receiving subsidy or financial assistance

15. Address where business subsidy or financial assistance
will be used

Street address ZIP code

16. Does the recipient have a parent corporation? (Mark one.)

City

Q Yes (Indicate name and address of parent corporation below. If more than one, indicate ultimate owner.)

O No
‘Name of parent corporation Street address City State ZIP code
2000 Minnesota Business Assistance Form Page 1 of 4 Department of Trade and Economic Development




CTe & Section 4 Goals and Public Purpose Identified in the Agreement

28. Minn. Stat. §116J.994 requires that business subsidy and financial assistance agreements state a public purpose. Which
of the following public purposes were stated in the agreement? (Mark all that apply.) '

Q Enhancing economic diversity O Increasing tax base (cannot be only purpose)

0 Creating high-quality job growth . Q Other (please specify)

0 Job retention Q Other (please specify) , Q
‘0 Stabilizing the community . Other (please specify) '

29. Indicate whether the agreement included the following types of goals, and whether the recipient had attained those goals
at the time of this report. (Fill in the boxes and attainment date(s) for each goal.)

Goals Target attainment All goals
established?  dates (month & year) attained?
A) Specific wage and job goals to be attained within 2 years QOYes ONo U Yes U No
B) Other job-creation and/or retention goals OYes ONo QO Yes QNo
C) Other wage goals - QYes UNo QYes ONo
D) Other goals other than wage and job goals OYes ONo ¢ 0O Yes ONo

{Please attach descriptions of goals and progress toward attainment if not documented in Question 30.)

30. For each of the following wage categories, indicate the job creation and/or retention goals stated in the
agreement and the average hourly value of any employer-provided health insurancegoals for those jobs. (Only indicate
Job creation goals in full-time equivalents if you are unable to separate goals by full- and part-time positions.)

Full-time " Part-time/ " FTE (enly if goals not

Hourly Wage - Job Seasonal/Temp, stated as FI/PT) Job Retention Hourly Value of

(excluding benefits) Creation Job Creation Job Creation . Health Insurance
no hourly wage-level goal _ —_' _ o $.
less than $7.00 —_— —_ _ - $
$7.00 to $8.99 ) _ _ - - S,
$9.00 to $10.99 - —_ —_— - - 3
$11.00 to $12.99 ’ . —_— ‘ - L — s
$13.00t0 $1499 - - . _— s
$15.00 and higher ' _ _ — _ $

31. For each of the following wage categories, indicate the number of actual jobs created and/or retained since the benefit
date and the actual hourly value of any employer-provided health insurance for those jobs. (Only indicate job creation in
Jull-time equivalents if you are unable to separate job creation into JSull- and part-time positions.) ’

Full-time Part-time/ FTE (only if unable to : )

. Hourly Wage Job Seasonal/Temp. separate FT/PT) Job Retention Hourly Value of

(excluding benefits) Creation Job Creation Job Creation Health Insurance
less than $7.00 . _ _ S - ' $
$7.00t0 $8.99 - — o - s
$9.00 to $10.99 R S - - s
$11.00 t0 $12.99 - - S S s
$13.00 t0 $14.99 _ [ - - $
$15.00 and higher J— R o - s

32. Has the recipient achieved all goals (see Questions 29, 30 and 31) and fulfilled all obligations stipulated in the agreement?
(Mark one.) . ’

QYes 0ONo

2000 Minnesota Business Assistance Form Page 3 of 4 Department of Trade and Economic Development
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84.18 TRUNK HIGHWAYS

(5) DETERMINATION OF ENTITLEMENT. The department shall
determine the entitlement to the coordinating agency based upon
the ratio between the estimated cost of reconstructing or rehabili-
tating seriously deteriorating local bridges in thiat county and the
estimated cost of reconstructing or rehabilitating the seriously
deteriorating local bridges in the state which are eligible under this
section, exclusive of any bridge that is programmed for construc-
tion under an vrder by the department under s. 84.11 (4). The esti-

" mated cost of reconstructing or rehabilitating the seriously deteri-

orating local bridges in the state and individual counties shall be
based upon those bridges identified in the inventory of bridges
made under s. 84.17.

{6) EXECUTION AND CONTROL OF WORK. Sllbject tos.30.12(4)
and the control exercised by the United States, the construction
under this section of any local bridge project shall be wholly under
the supervision and control of the department. The secretary shall

- make and execute all contracts and have complete supervision

over all matters pertaining to such construction and shall have the
power to suspend or discontinue proceedmgs or construction rela-
tive to any bridge project at any time in the event any county, city,

- village or town fails to pay the amount required of it for any project

eligible for construction under this section, or if the secretary
determines that sufficient funds to pay the stafe’s part of the cost
of such bridge project are not available. All moneys provided by
counties, cities, villages and towns shall be deposited in the state
treasury, when required by the secretary, and paid out on order of

th= secretary. Any of the moneys deposited for a project eligible - -
for construction under this section which remain in the state trea-

sury after the completion of the prOJect shall be repaid to the
respective county, city, village or town in proportion to the amount
each deposited.

(7) RuLes. The department shall adopt rules to lmplement this

. section.

(8) Exceprions. Nothing in this section prevents construction
or rehabilitation projects under other bridge programs.if applica-
ble. _ '

History: 1981 c. 20, 314; 1989 a. 31.

84.185 Transportation facilities economic assistance
and development. (1) DEeFINITIONS. In this section: )

(a) “Business” has the meaning given in s. 560.60 (2).

(am) “Economic development project” means a business
evelopment that directly and significantly increases the number

‘of jobs in this state.

(b) “Governing body” has the meaning specified in's. 560.60

(>

(bm) “Grant ceiling means the department’s maximum finan-
cial participation in an improvement.

¢c) “Improvement” includes construction, reconstruction and
the activities, operations and processes incidental to building, fab-
ricating or bettering a transportation facility, but not maintaining
or operating a transportation facility.

(ce) “Job” has the meaning specified in s. 560.60 (10).

(cm) “Political subdivision” has.the meaning specified in 5.

560.60 (13).
(d) “Transportation facility” means any of the following:
. 1. A highway as defined in s. 340.01 (22).
2. A runway, taxiway or apron of an airport as deﬁned in s.

© 114.002 (7).

3. A harbor 1mprovement as defined i ins. 85.095 (1) (b).

4. Rail property consisting of an industrial lead, spur, team
track property or trackside intermodal transfer facility.

5. A segment of railroad track, if the conditions under sub. (2)
(c) are met.

(2) APPROVAL OF IMPROVEMENTS. (a) The secretary may
approve the improvement of a transportation facility under this

99-00 Wis. Stats. 2118

section if the improvement is a component of an economic devel-
opment project.
(b) The secretary may approve an improvement under this sec-
tion only after determining all of the following:

1. Whether the improvement is a justified transportation
need. Animprovement qualifies as a justified transportation need
only when the secretary determines that the costs of the.improve-
ment are substantially balanced by significant transportatlon
benefits resulting from the improvement.

2. The cost of the improvement. .

3. The ratio of the cost of the improvement to the increase in
the number of jobs in this state resulting directly from the
improvement or economic development project.

4. The number of jobs which the improvement or economic
development pro;ect will cause to be retained or mcreased in this
state.

5. Whether the political subdivision will contnbute from
funds not provided by this state, not less than 50% of the cost of -
the improvement. .

6. The value of the expendrtures requlred for loca.l 1nfrastruc-
ture relating to the improvement.

7. Whether the 1mprovement is compatible and complemen—
tary to other. transportation facilities and improvements in the

political subdivision:

8. Whether the lmprovement serves a public purpose.
9. Whether the improvement is unlikely to be made wrth(_)nt
assistance under this section. » :

10. Whether the improvernent will be located in an area of
high unemployment or low average income.

11. Whether the improvement will contribute to the economic
growth of this state and the well—bemg of the residents of this
state.

12. Whether a business that would be helped by an 1mprove—
ment is financially sound.

14. Whether the improvement would have a srgmﬁcant nega-
tive impact on other businesses.

(c) The secretary may approve the relocatlon ofa segment of
railroad track as an improvement of a transportation facility if the
land on which the track lies is necessary for the expansion or con-
tinued operation of an existing business facility and the conditions
under pars. (a) and (b) are met.. i

(3) DEPARTMENT SHARE. (a) When awarding a grant under this
section, the department shall establish a grant ceiling. Except as
provided in par. (b) 2., the grant ceiling shall not be amended after
the secretary has approved an application for funding. Except as
provided in-par. (b), the grant ceiling shall be the lesser of the fol-
lowing:

1. 50% of the anticipated cost of the 1mprovement

2. Five thousand dollars for each job in this state resulting
directly from the improvement or economic development project.

(b) 1. If the secretary finds that special circumstances exist,
zhe secretary may increase the grant ceiling determined under par.

a)

2. The secretary may increase the grant ceiling determined
under par. (a) by $50,000 if the secretary determines that all of the
following apply:

a. The improvement includes the construction, expansion ot
rehabilitation of a rail spur or other facility related to railroads.

b. The applicant demonstrates that the improvement will
result in a reduction in the amount of motor truck traffic entering
or exiting the area or commumty in which the improvement is
located.

c. .The department received the application for assistance
under this section before April 27, 1998, and either the improve-
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Chapter Trans 510

TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES ECONOMIC ASSISTANCE
AND DEVELOPMENT (TEA) PROGR‘AM '

Trans 510.01 Purpose and scope
Trans 51002 Definitions

Trans 51003 Application procedure
Trans 51004 Screening

Trans 510.05 Evaluation of eligibility

Trans
Trans
Trans
Trans

51006 Funding shares

51007 Grant awards

510.08 Assistance agrecments
510.09 Project development process

Note: Ch. Trans 510 wascreated asan emergency rule effective October 16, 1989,

Trans 510.01 Purpose and scope. (1) As required by
s. 84.185 (4), Stats., the purpose of this chapter is to establish de-
partment criteria for implementing a flexible and expeditious pro-
cess of evaluating and approving transportation facility improve-
ments that are essential to economic development projects.

(2) The objective of the ransportation facilities economic as-
sistance and development program is to increase the number of
jobs in this state by responding to the transportation needs of an
economic development project when that project is contingent on
the transportation facility improvement.

History: Cr. Register, February, 1990, No. 410, ff, 3-1-90,

Trans §10.02 Definitions. In addition to the words and
phrases as defined in s. 84.185, Stats., in this chapter:

(1) “Applicant” means a business, consortium or governing
body.

(2) “Applicant’s share” means an amount of money or in kind
services equaling no less than 50% of the final transportation fa-
cility improvement cost. In kind services may include, but are not
limited to, engineering, land acquisition and construction.

(3) “Cost per direct job” means the grantceiling divided by the
number of direct jobs. .

{(4) “Department” means the department of transportation.

(5) “Direct jobs” means the number of eligible jobs directly
associated with an economic development project and listed on
the application, as reviewed and approved by the department.

(6) “Eligible jobs” means Jobs that represent net employment
gains in this state. ’

(7) “Final transportation facility improvement cost” means the
actual contract cost incurred for constructing participating ele-
ments of approved transportation facility improvements, includ-
ing contract change orders for work approved by the department.

(8) “Grant ceiling” means the department’s maximum finan-
cial participation in a transportation facility improvement.

(9) “Reviewed transportation facility improvement
cost’means the estimated cost of the transportation facility im-
provement as reviewed and approved by the department.

(10) “Secretary” means the sccretary of transportation.
History: Cr, Register, February. 1990. No. 410, off, 3-1 ~90.

Trans 510.03 Application procedure, (1) APPLICATION
PACKET. Applicants shall contact cither the dcpartment s director
of the bureau of policy planning and analysis or the chief planning
engineer of a department distnict office for an application packet
containing the application requircments and a description of the
application screening. evaluanon. and funding process.

(2) APPLICATION PROCESS Completed applications shall be
sent to the department’s dircctor of the burcau of policy planning
and analysis. Applications shall be accepied throughout the year.
The department shall expeditiously screen and evaluate applica-
tions as received. Application dcadlines and fi unding dates shall
be established, listed in the application packet and announced

publicly through varying media. The department, as is necessary,
may establish additional application deadlines and funding dates.
The department shall only consider applications received on or
before the application deadline for a given funding date. Applica-
tions shall not be evaluated for eligibility unless all information
required in the application packet is made available prior to the ap-

- plication deadline. The results of the screening and evaluation

shall be reported promptly to the applicant when completed.

(3) INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS, (2) The application shall re-
quest information necessary to determine how well the proposed
transportation facility improvement and economic development
project satisfy the criteria contained in s, 84.185, Stats., and this

_chapter. In addition, the application shall require the following:

1. A certification that the applicant will comply with all feder-
al and state laws and local ordinances as they relate to the develop-
ment and use of the transportation facility improvement.

2. A written endorsement of the application from any govern-
ing body which will own or have jurisdictional responsibility for
the transportation facility improvement.

3. A description of the economic development project and the

. transportation facility improvement. The description shall contain

appropriate maps or drawings and estimates of specific cost items
for the transportation facility improvement such as land, engineer-
ing, and construction.

(b) Supplemental information beyond that contained in the ap-
plication packet may be needed by the department in order to com-
plete its review of an application. The department shall notify the
applicant in writing of any supplemental information that is need-
ed and shall set reasonable additional deadlines for the receipt of
this information. If the information is not received by the addition-

tion from consideration.
History: Cr. Register, February, 1990, No. 410, ff. 3-1-90.

- al deadlines establishied, the department may remove the applica-

Trans §10.04 Screening. (1) CrrteriA. Applications that
meet the following screening criteria shall be evaluated for fund-
ing eligibility if they are for transportation facility improvements
not excluded under sub. (2):

(a) The economic development project is unlikely to occur in
Wisconsin unless the transportation facility improvement is built.

(b) The transportation facility improvement is not likely to oc-
cur without the grant. '

(c) The business development meets the definition of an“‘eco-
nomic development project™ set forth in s, 84.185 (1) (am), Stats.

(d) Construction of the transportation facility improvement
would be scheduled to begin within 3 years of the date when a
grant is awarded for the improvement,

(2) ExcLusions. The following transportation facility im-
provements are ineligible for assistance:

(a) Street, road and highway improvements that are not open

to the public and not under either the Jurisdiction or ownership of
a public authority.

Register, August, 1996, No. 488
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appropriate, the department may choose to delegate responsibility
for approving plans, enforcing department standards, acquiring
necessary rights—of-way, and letting bids to the local jurisdiction
which is responsible for project management. The following
conditions shall be applicd:

(a) Highway, road, and airport improvements must employ the
services of aregistered professional engineer to be responsible for
design and construction.

(b) The applicant must assume all responsibility for complying
with all germane environmental requirements for the transporta-
tion facility improvement, and certify that an environmental anal-
ysis was completed and that all applicable environmental laws
were followed.

(©) A design study report for highway and road improveiments
or an equivalent document for airport, rail and harbor improve-
ments must be submitted to the department for approval prior to
preparing final plans.

(d) A copy of the plans and specifications containing the engi-
neer’s seal as prepared for bidding purposes must be provided to
the department prior to the start of construction.

- (e) 1. Except as noted in subd. 2., all contracts must be let to

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Trans 510.09

competitive bid and contracts awarded to the lowest responsible
bidder. The applicant must submit a certification of the date bids
were taken, listing all bidders and bid amounts. A written explana-
tion must accompany any certification where the contract is
awarded to someone other than the low bidder.

2. Upon written determination by the local jurisdiction re-
sponsible for project management of the necessity to let a contract
for construction of all or part of a rail improvement on railroad
owned or controlled land, and with the written concurrence of the
department in this determination, a contract for construction at

" cost may be let to the railroad without competitive bid.

(f) All real estaté acquisition and required relocation of per-
sons, families, businesses, or farms must be accomplished in ac-
cordance with existing state law. A written certification from the
applicant to this effect shall be required after the real estate is ac-
quired.

(g) State payments will be made after the improvement is com-
plete and sufficient proof of cost is sent to the department. On im-
provements where the reviewed transportation facility improve-
ment cost is over $100,000, the department may pay on the basis
of actual costs, but no more than monthly.

History: Cr. Register, February, 1990, No. 410, eff, 3-1-90.

Register, August, 1996, No. 488
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vices except as provided in this section. All moneys received .

under this subsection shall be deposited in the general fund and
credited to the appropriation account under s. 20.395 (5) (dg).
History: 1997 a. 27.

85.515 Implementation of 1997 Wisconsin Act 84. [fthe

" secretary determines that the changes to the department’s comput-
‘erized information systems made necessary by 1997 Wisconsin

Act 84 will be operational before May 1, 2001, the secretary shall
publish a notice in the Wisconsin Administrative Register that
states the date on which the changes to the department’s comput-
erized information system will begin operating, and that clearly
states which portion of revisions to the operator’s license suspen-
sion and revocation law made by 1997 Wisconsin Act 84 will
become effective on that date. i :

NOTE: Section 85.515 is repealed eff. 5-1-01 or the date stated in the notice
published by the secretary of transportation in the Wisconsin Administrative
Register under s. 85.51S, whichever is earlier, by 1997 Wis. Act 84, as affected
by 1999 Wis. Act_ 9, s. 3263.

History: 1997 2. 84;19992a.9.

85.52 Transportation infrastructure loan program.

(1) DerNiTIONS. In this section:

(ac) “Capital project” has the meaning given in 49 USC 5302.
. (ag) “Eligible applicant” means a county, city, village, town or
combination thereof, Amitrak, as defined in s. 85.061 (1), a rail-
road, as defined in s. 85.01 (5), a private nonprofit organization
that is an eligible applicant under s. 85.22 (2) (am), or a transit
commission created under s. 59.58 (2) or 66.1021.

(am) “Fund” means the transportation infrastructure loan fund
established under s. 25.405.

" (bm) “Othcr assistance™ has the meaning given in P.L.. 104-59,

section 350 (L) (3). :

(c) “Revenue obligation” has thé meaning givenins. 18.52(5).

(2) ACCEPTANCE OF FEDERAL CAPITALIZATION GRANTS. The
department may enter into an agreement with the U.S. department
of transportation to receive a capitalization grant under P.L.
104-59, section 350. The agreement may contain any provision
required by P.L.. 104-59, section 350, and any regulation, guide-
line or policy adopted under that section.

(3). ADMINISTRATION. (a) The department shall administer a
transportation infrastructure loan program to make loans, and to

provide other assistance, to eligible applicants for highway proj-

ects or transit capital projects. The department of transportation
may not make a loan or provide other assistance under the pro-
gram unless the secretary of administration approves of the loan
or other assistance and determines that the amounts in the fund,
together with anticipated receipts, will be sufficient to fully pay
‘principal and interest costs incurred on the revenue obligations
issued under sub. (5). Loans or other assistance under the program
for highway projects shall be credited to the highway account.

" Loans or other assistance under the program for transit capital

projects shall be credited to the transit account.

~ (bm) Any loan made under the program shall comply with PL.
104-59, section -350, and any regulation, guideline or policy
adopted under that section. The department may not provide other
assistance under the program to an eligible applicant unless such
assistance complies with P.L. 104-59, section 350, and any regu-
lation, guideline or policy adopted under that section.

(cm) The joint committee on finance may transfer moneys, at
the request of the department, in amounts not to exceed the
amounts necessary to meet the requirements under P.L. 104-59,
section 350, from the transportation fund to the transportation
infrastructure loan fund. The department shall submit to the joint
commiltee on finance for its review and approval proposed reduc-
tions among the transportation fund appropriations to the depart-
ment equal to the amount transferred under this paragraph. The
joint committee on finance may approve, disapprove or modify
the proposed reductions. Upon approval of the proposed reduc-
tions, as may be modified by the committee, an amount equivalent

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 85.52

to each approved reduction is lapsed from the appropriation
account for each reduced appropriation to the transportation fund.

(4) RuLes. (a) The department of transportation and the.
department of administration shall promulgate rules necessary to
implement the transportation infrastructure loan program. The

- rules shall specify the terms and conditions of oans or other assist-

.ance provided under the program and shall establish criteria for
determining which eligible applicants and which projects are eli-
gible to receive loans or other assistance under the program. The
criteria shall include all of the following:

I. The impact of funding a project under the program on
accelerating the completion of a major highway project under s.
84.013. .

2. The statewide and local economic impact of the projects.

3. The level of commitment by the eligible applicant to the
project. :

4. The type and quality of intermodal transportation facilities
affected by the project.

(b) The department of transportation and the department of
administration may charge and collect fees, established jointly by
rules, from eligible applicants to recover the costs of administer-
ing the program.

(4m) INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT. The department of adminis-
tration may: :

(a) 1. Subject to par. (b), direct the investment board under s.
25.17 (2) (e) to make any investment of the fund, or in the collec-

tion of the principal and interest of all moneys loaned or invested
from such fund.

2. Subject to par. (b), purchase or acquire, commit on a
standby basis to purchase or acquire, sell, discount, assign, negoti-
ate, or otherwise dispose of, or pledge, hypothecate or otherwise
create a security interest in, loans as the department of administra-
tion may determine, or portions or portfolios of participations in
loans, made or purchased under this section. The disposition may
be at the price and under the terms that the department of adminis-
tration determines to be reasonable and may be at public or private
sale. '

(b) The department of administration shall take an action under
par. (a) only if all of the following conditions occur:

1. The action provides a financial benefit to the transportation
infrastructure fund. ’ :

2. The action does not contradict or weaken the purposes of
the transportation infrastructure loan fund.

3. The building commission approves the action before the
department of administration acts.

(5) REVENUE OBLIGATIONS. (a) The transportation infrastruc-
ture loan program is a revenue-producing enterprise or program
as defined in s. 18.52 (6).

(b) Deposits, appropriations or transfefs to the fund for the pur-
poses specified in s. 20.395 (2) (pq) may be funded with the pro-
ceeds of revenue obligations issued subject to and in accordance
with subch, [l of ch. 18. Revenue obligations issued under this
section shall not exceed $100 in principal amount, excluding
obligations issued to refund outstanding revenue obligations.

(c) The department of administration may, under s. 18.561 or
18.562, deposit in a separate and distinct fund in the state treasury
or in an account maintained by a trustee outside the state treasury,
any portion of the revenues derived under s. 25.405 (2). The reve-
nues deposited with a trustee outside the state treasury are the
trustee’s revenues in accordance with the agreement between this
state and the trustee or in accordance with the resolution pledging

the revenues to the repayment of revenue obligations issued under
this subsection.

(d) The building commission may pledge any portion of reve-
nues received or to be received in the fund established in par. (c)

_ or the transportation infrastructure loan fund to secure revenue

obligations issued under this subsection.
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(e) The department of administration has all other powers nec-
essary and convenient to distribute the pledged revenues and to
distribute the proceeds of the revenue obligations in accordance
with subch. II of ch. 18.

(0 The department of administration may enter into agree-

" ments with the federal government, political subdivisions of this

state, individuals or private entities to insure or in any other man-

ner provide additional security for the revenue obligations issued
under this subsection.

{g) Revenue obligations may be contracted by the building
commission when it reasonably appears to the building commis-
sion that all obligations incurred under this subsection can be fully
paid on a timely basis from moneys received or anticipated to be
received by the fund.

(h) Unless otherwise expressly provided in resolutions autho-
rizing the issuance of revenue obligations or in other agreements
with the holders of revenue obligations, each issue of revenue
obligations under this subsection shall be on a parity with every
other revenue obligation issued under this subsection and in
accordance with subch. Il of ch. 18.

History: 1997 a. 27, 237: 1999 a. 9; 1999 a. 150 5. 672.

85.53 Pretrial intoxicated driver intervention grant
program. (1) In this section:

(a) “Defendant” means a person accused of or charged with a
2nd or subsequent violation of operating while intoxicated.

(b) “Eligible applicant means a city, village, town, county or
private nonprofit organization.

(c) “Intoxicant” means any alcohol beverage, controlled sub-
stance, controlled substance analog or other drug or any combina-
tion thereof.

(d) “Operating while intoxicated” means a violation of s.
346.63 (1) or (2m) or a local ordinance in conformity therewith or
of s. 346.63 (2) or (6), 940.09 (1) or 940.25.

(2) The department shall administer the pretrial intoxicated
driver intervention grant program. The program shall award
grants to eligible applicants to administer a local pretrial intoxi-
cated driver intervention program that, prior to the sentencing of
a defendant for operating while intoxicated, does all of the follow-
ing:

(a) Identifies the defendant and notifies him or her of the avail-
ability and cost of the program and that, if the defendant is con-
victed, a court will consider the defendant’s participation in the
program when imposing a sentence.

(b) ‘Monitors the defendant’s use of intoxicants to reduce the
incidence of abuse.

(c) Treats the defendant’s abusc of intoxicants to reduce the
incidence of abuse.

(d) Reports to the court on the defendant’s participation in the
program.

(e) Requires program participants to pay a reasonable fee to
participate in the program. Such a fee may not exceed 20% of the
actual per capita cost of the program.

(3) Grants under this section shail be paid from the appropria-
tion under s. 20.395 (5) (jr). The amount of a grant may not exceed
80% of the amount expended by an cligible applicant for services
related to the program.

(4) (a) Not later than December 31 of each even—numbered
year. the department shall submit a report to the legislature under
s. 13.172 (2) that states the number of individuals arrested for a

e
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2nd or subsequent offense of operating while intoxicated; the
number of individuals who completed a local pretrial intoxicated
driver intervention program; the percentage of successful comple-
tion of all individuals who commence such a program; the number
of individuals who, after completing such a program, are arrested
for a 3rd or subsequent offense of operating while intoxicated; and
the number of individuals eligible to participate in a program who
did not complete a program and who, after becoming eligible to
participate in the program, are arrested for a 3rd or subsequent
offense of operating while intoxicated.

(b) ' An eligible applicant who teceives a grant under sub. (2)
shall, not later than December 31 of the year for which the grant
was made, submit a report to the speaker of the assembly and to
the president of the senate in the manner describedinss. 13.172(3)
summarizing the results of the pretrial intoxicated driverinterven-
tion program administered by the eligible applicant and providing
any additional information required by the department.

(5) Consent to participate in a local pretrial intoxicated driver
intervention program funded under this section is not an admis-
sion of guilt and the consent may not be admitted in evidence in
a trial for operating while intoxicated. No statement relating to
operating while intoxicated, made by the defendant in connection
with any discussions concerning the program or to any person

involved in the program, is admissible in a trial for operating while
intoxicated.
History: 1997 2.27: 1999 2. 9, 185.

85.55 Safe-ride grant program. The department may
award grants to any county or municipality or to any nonprofit cor-
poration, asdefined ins. 46.93 (1m) (c), to caver the costs of trans-
porting persons suspected of having a prohibited alcohol con-
centration, as defined in s. 340.01 (46m), from any premises
licensed under ch. 125 to sell alcohol beverages to their places of
residence. The amount of a grant under this section may not
exceed 50% of the costs necessary to provide the service. The
liability of a provider of a safe-ride program to persons trans-
ported under the program is limited to the amounts required for an
automobile liability policy under s. 344.15 (1). Grants awarded

under this section shall be paid from the appropriation undcr S.
20.395 (5) (ek). .
History: 1999a. 109.

85.605 Professional football stadium maintenance
and operating costs. (1) In this section:

(am) “District board” has the meaning given ins. 229.821 (5).

(b) “Football stadium™ has the meaning given ins. 229.821 (6).

{c) “Football stadium fac;lmes has the meaning given in s.
229.821 (7).

(d) “Professional football team™ means aprofessnonal football
team described in s. 229.823.

(2) From the appropriation unders. 20.395(1) (ig), the depart-
ment annually shall deposit payments into the fund established
under s. 229.8257 by each local professional football stadium dis-
trict created under subch. IV of ch. 229. The-amount of any
deposit under this section shall be the sum of money credited to
the appropriation account under s. 20.395 (1) (ig) during the pre-
vious fiscal year that is attributable to the professional football
team whose home stadium, as defined in s. 229.821 (8), is located
in the local professional football stadium district over which the

district board that established the fund has jurisdiction.
History: 1999 a. 167.
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Trans 512.01 Purpose and scope. (1) The purpose of
this chapter is to establish a procedure for the administration of the
transportation infrastructure loan program as provided in s. 85.52,
Stats.

(2) The objective of the transportation infrastructure loan pro-
gram is to establish a revolving loan fund, loan guarantees, inter-
est rate subsidies, lease buy—back options and other financial
leveraging instruments to assist communities in providing for

transportation infrastructure and capital improvements to pre- -

serve, promote and encourage ecomomic development, or to
improve and promote local and regional transportation efficien-
cies and mobility for Wisconsin communities.

(3) The department shall create within the transportation
infrastructure bank a separate account to be designated as the
highway account and a separate account to be designated as the
transit account, each of which shall be designated solely to provid-

ing loans.and other forms of financial assistance consistent with

the national highway system designation act of 1995, P.L. 104-59
and s. 85.52, Stats.

History: Cr. Register, June, 1998, No. 510, eff. 7-1-98.

Trans §12.02 Definitions. The words and phrases
defined in ss. 85.52 and 340.01, Stats., have the same meaning in
this chapter unless a different definition is speafically prowded
In this chapter:

(1) “Economic development” means any of the following:

(2) Retention or creation of jobs in the state.

(b) Significant capital investment.

(c) Increased competitiveness of a Wisconsin business leading
to increased sales or profits and significant contribution to the
economy of this state.

{2) “Eligible applicant” means a county, city, village or town,
Amtrak, as defined in s. 85.061 (1), Stats., a railroad as defined in
s. 85.01(5), Stats., a private nonprofit organization that is an eligi-
ble applicant under s. 85.22 (2) (am), Stats., or a transit commis-
sion created under s. 59.58 (2) or 66.943, Stats.

(3) “Mobility” means the efficient movement of people and
commodities by various transportation and carrier modes.

(4) “Project” means a state infrastructure bank project eligi-
ble under s. 85.52, Stats., and PL. 104—59 section 350, 109 Stat.
618-622.

(5) “Transportation efficiency” means an infrastructure or
mobility improvement which does any of the following:

(a) Increases traffic mobility.

(b) Reduces traffic congestion.

(c) Reduces travel time.

(d) Reduces travel distance.

(¢) Improves accessibility.

() Increases traffic circulation.

(g) Improves geometrics.

(h) Improves comfort and rideability of travelers.

- (i) Increases mobility for elderly and disabled persoms as
defined in s. 85.22 (2), Stats.

() Improves safety.
(k) Improves air quality.
History: Cr. Register, June, 1998, No. 510, eff. 7-1-98.

Trans 512.03 Application procedure. Eligible appli-
cants under this chapter may make application to the department
at any time for funding. Application and funding cycles shall be
established and publicly announced by the department. An
application under this chapter shall be in a form as the department
may require.

Note: Applicants may obtain an application and program packet by contacting
Economic

Dennis Leong, Chief, Burcau of Planning and Development
Section, P. 0. Box 7913, Room 901, Madison, WI 53707-7913.

History: Cr. Register, June,lMNo 510, eff. 7-1-98.

Trans 512.04 Screening criteria. Applications that
meet the following screening criteria shall be evaluated for fund-
ing eligibility:

(1) Whether the applicant is eligible.

(2) Whether the project is ehglble under PL. 104-59 sec-
tion 350, 109 Stat. 618-622.

(3) Whether the applicant has the committed ﬁnanaal
resources to complete the project.

(4) Whether the project will be for a public purpose.

(5) Whether the applicant certifies that funds from a loan
under this chapter may not be used to pay overhead costs, replace
funds from another source or refinance an existing debt. .

History: Cr. Register, June, 1998, No. 510, eff. 7-1-98.

Trans 512.05 Evaluation criteria. The department shall
evaluate and rank the applications that are eligible for funding
according to the following criteria:

(1) Whether the project represents a prudent and productxve
investment of public funds.

(2) The extent to which the project furthers economic devel-
opment.

(3) Whether the project is compatible and complementary to
other intermodal transportation facilities. .

(4) Whether the project improves transportation efficiency
and mobility.

{5) Whether the project accelerates the completion of a major

‘highway project under s. 84.013, Stats.

(6) The degree to which the loan leverages other financial
esowces.
(7) Whether the pro_]ect can be completed in a timely manner.
{8) The financial viability of the project.
(9) The security of any repayment stream.
History: Cr. Register, June, 1998, No. 510, eff. 7-1-98.

Trans 512.06 Agreements. Successful applicants shall
be required to enter into a negotiated agreement with the depart-
ment. The agreement shall be signed by the secretary or his'or her
designee and an authorized representative of the eligible appli-
cant. Loan repayments shall commence no later than 5 years after
completion of .the project. The duration of the loan may not
exceed 30 years. The department shall charge interest at market
rates, as determined by the department, to make the project that is
the subject of the loan feasible, except when the applicant satisfies

Register, June, 1998, No. 510
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- the secretary that interest would represent an undue hardship for
the applicant. :
History: Cr. Register, June, 1998, No. 510, eff. 7-1-98.

Trans §12.07 Reporting. Each agreement shall include a
periodic requifement to report on economic development, trans-
portation efficiency, mobility, and other benefits as determined by
the department. The report shall be prepared by the loan recipient.

History: Cr. Register, June, 1998, No. 510, eff. 7-1-98.

- Register, June, 1998, No. 510
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'MAR-13-01,MON 04:26 PH  NAT'L CONF. OF ST. LEG. FAX NO. 3038638003 P.18/26

1998 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE REPORT
' (PLEASE RETURN BY APRIL16, 1999)

A. EMPLOYER INFORMATION

1. Employer Name; | 2. Contact Person;

3. Street Address: | 4. Municipality:

5. County: | 6. State: | 7.ZipCode: .
8. SIC Code: {9.Phone: - [10.Fax: | 11. E-Mail:

12. Relocation: Yes 0 No O | 13. Previous Address:
‘| 14. Parent Company Name & State:

B. TYPE AND AMOUNT OF ASSISTANCE (PLUS TOTAL INVESTMENT)

Program Rank | Amount Uses
1. O Business Equipment Tax Reimbursement $ REME,TR,DS,OT
2. O Employment Tax Increment Financing, $ IR,DS,0T
3. O Governor’s Training Initiative $ RE ME,TR,DS,OT
| 4. O Jobs Investment Tax Credit $ RE,ME,TR,DS,0OT
5. 0 Maine Quality Centers $ RE,ME, TR, DS,0T
6. [ Research Expense Tax Credit $ RE ME,TR,DS,0OT
7. 0 Tax Increment Financing $ REME,TR,DS,OT
8. Total Incentives $ -RE,ME,TR,DS,0T
9, Total Capital Investment: $ | 10. Total Training Investment: $

C. JoBs CREATED {ermmmmu: TO RECEIPT OF INCENTIVE)

Occupational Cluster v Full-time | Part-time | Wage Level
Executive, Administrative & Managerial . '

Professional Specialty

Technicians & Related Support

Marketing & Sales

Administrative Support, including Clerical
Service

Agriculture, Forestry & Fishing -
Mechanics, Installers & Repairers
Construction Trades & Extractive

10 Production

11. Transportation & Material Moving

12. Handlers, Equip. Cleaners, Helpers & Lab'rs

w|oe| e |u| R d|e

len|nlnip i B RN
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MAR-13-01.MON 04:26 PH NAT’L CONF. OF ST. LEG.  FAX NO. 3038638003 P. 20/26

1998 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE REPORT
(PLEASE RETURN BY APRIL 16, 1999)

D. JoBS RETAINED (ATTRIBUTABLE TO RECEIPT OF INCENTIVE)

Occupational Cluster Full-time | Pari-time | Wage Level
Executive, Administrative & Managerial
Professional Specialty
Technicians & Related Support
Marketing & Sales =
Administrative Suyport, including Clerical -
Service
Agriculture, Forestry & Fishing
Mechanics, Installers & Repairers
. _Construction Trades & Extractive
10 Production '
11. Transportation & Matenal Moving
12, Handlers, Equip. Cleaners, Helpers & Lab’

hed Pt N 0] L Bad Ead T

Lo a R R Rl Ko d R g R e g o] =g R o] £

E. CURRENT EMPLOYMENT (N or Iusr INCENTWB RELATED, Bur. ALL MAINE EMPLOYEES)

Ocagaatwnal Cluster ‘ P‘I-‘ PT Wage Level Beneﬁts Avg Pct

1. Exec., Admin. & Managerial $ CDHR %
2. Professional Specialty b CDHR %
3. Technicians & Related Support $ CDHR %
4. Marketing & Sales 3 CDHR %
5. Admin, Support, incl. Clerical $ CDHR %
6. Service $ CDHR %
7._Agriculture, Forestry & Fxshlgg $ CDHR %
8. Mech., Installers & Repairers $ CDHR %
9. Construction Trades & Extractive % CDHR %
10. Production 3 CDHR %
11. Transportation & Mater'l Moving $ - CDHR | %
12. Handlers, E/C, Helpers & Lab’rs $ CDHR %

F Mww CHANGE
Year _ Total Full-time | Part-time

1. Number of Employees on December 31, 1998
‘2. Number of Employees on December 31, 1997
‘3. Employment Level Change

Page20f3
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MﬁR—lB 01 MON 04:26 P NAT'L CONF. OF ST. LEG. FAX NO. 3038638003

. va

1998 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE REPORT
{PLEASE RETURN BY APRIL 16, 1999)

G. PUBLIC PURPOSE ASSESSMENT: (IF APPLICABLE) & EMPLOYER FEEDBACK

| 1. Answer #1 only if you applied for an incentive after July 16, 1998. What public purpose
was identified on your incentive application? How has your company performed with
respect to the public purpose you identified? Feel free to use the other side as additional
sheet; zdentzfy question as G1.

2. Where would ydur company be if these incentives were not available to you? Which
incentives provided the most benefit to your company? Why? How could incentivesbe |
improved? Feel free to use the other side as additional sheet; identify question as G2. '

I certify that the mfonnahon contazned in t}us repart isan accurate account of the activities
related to my company’s parkicipation in state economic development maentme programs

1. Name: 2. Title:
3. Signature: , , 4. Date:

Page3of3



